



# VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS NOTICE OF MEETING

# INAUGURAL ADVISORY PLANNING COMMISSION

DATE:

May 26, 2009

TIME:

4:00 p.m.

LOCATION:

Council Chambers, Harrison Hot Springs, British Columbia

	(a)	Meeting called to order by the Mayor	
	(-)	1	Name of the last o
. PLECE	TON C	NE CHANDALAN	
2. ELECT	TON C	OF CHAIRMAN	

3. ESTABLISH AGENDA						
	Items	s of Interest				
	a)	Review suitable day and times for meetings				
	b)	APC Terms of Reference - review	,			

4. ADJOURNMENT

Larry Burk

Chief Administrative Officer



# VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS

# TERMS OF REFERENCE

# **Advisory Planning Commission**

#### **PURPOSE**

The purpose of the Harrison Hot Springs Advisory Planning Commission is to advise Council on matters with respect to land use, planning and growth strategy issues and as referred to them by Council from time to time.

#### **MEMBERSHIP**

The Commission shall consist of a minimum of six (6) members and may operate without all positions being occupied. A quorum shall consist of four members.

# **PROCEDURES**

- 1. The Commission shall elect a chairperson and a deputy chairperson at the first meeting.
- The Commission may meet as required and will structure its activities to meet at least five times per year. The Commission is not required to meet every month of the year.
- 3. Minutes of Commission meetings will be forwarded to Council for information.
- 4. The mandate of the Harrison Hot Springs Advisory Planning Commission is:
  - a) to consider all matters referred to it by the Council and report thereon to the Council.
  - b) to report to the Council within a time designated by the Council. If the report is not provided within the time designated then the Council may:
    - 1. Extend the time within which the report is to be provided; or
    - 2. Determine the matter without the report.
  - c) The Commission shall have as its objective the growth of the Village in a systematic and orderly manner for the ultimate benefit of the community as a whole.
- 5. Save with respect to matters expressly dealt with or provided for, the rules governing proceedings of the Committee shall be those governing proceedings of the Council under the Procedural Bylaw No. 914.



# VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS BYLAW NO. 914

A bylaw to establish the rules of procedure for Council of the Village of Harrison Hot Springs

**WHEREAS** under Sections 124 (1) of the *Community Charter*, Council must by bylaw establish the general procedures to be followed by Council and Council Committees in conducting their business.

**NOW, THEREFORE,** the Council of the Village of Harrison Hot Springs in open meeting assembled enacts as follows:

# 1. <u>CITATION</u>:

This Bylaw may be cited for all purposes as "Village of Harrison Hot Springs Council Procedure Bylaw No. 914, 2009" and comes into effect on the date of adoption.

#### 2. <u>DEFINITIONS:</u>

In this bylaw, unless the context otherwise requires:

- "Acting Mayor" means a member of Council who is nominated by the Mayor and appointed by Council pursuant to Section 130 of the *Community Charter*;
- "Charter" means Community Charter;
- "Commission" means a municipal commission established under s.143 of the *Community Charter*;
- "Committee" means a select, standing, or other committee duly appointed by the Council, but does not include COW;
- "COW" or "Committee of the Whole" means all of the members of the Council present at a meeting sitting in Committee;

- "Councillor" means a Councillor of the Village of Harrison Hot Springs:
- "Corporate Officer" means the Corporate Officer for the Village of Harrison Hot Springs:
- "Council" means the Municipal Council of the Village of Harrison Hot Springs;
- "Deputy Mayor" means the member appointed by Council to preside at any meeting of Council in the absence or incapacity of the Mayor;
- "In Camera meeting" means a meeting closed to the public:
- "Mayor" means the duly elected Mayor of the Village of Harrison Hot Springs;
- "Member" means a member of the Municipal Council of the Village of Harrison Hot Springs and includes the Mayor;
- "Meeting" shall include all meetings of Council whether regular or otherwise unless specifically stated;
- "Motion" means a formal proposal made by a member of Council that the Council undertake or approve a specified course of action; and
- "Municipal Hall" means Harrison Hot Springs Municipal Hall located at 495 Hot Springs Road, Harrison Hot Springs, British Columbia
- "Public Notice Posting Place" means the front window at the entrance to the Village Office and public notice board within the Village of Harrison Hot Springs;
- "Village" means the Village of Harrison Hot Springs:
- "Village Web Site" means the information resource found at an internet address provided by the Village;

#### 3. MEETINGS OF COUNCIL:

- (a) Following the general local election, the first Council meeting shall be held on the first Monday in December in the year of the election.
- (b) After the inaugural meeting, regular meetings of Council shall be held on the first and third Mondays of each month, except for the months of July, August and September, when there shall only be one meeting per month and that meeting shall be on the second Monday of the month for those three months:
- (c) Where the regular meeting day of Council occurs on a statutory holiday, the regular meeting will take place on the day immediately following such holiday, or another date set by Council;

- (d) Regular Council meetings may:
  - (i) be cancelled by the Mayor or Council, provided that two consecutive meetings are not cancelled; and
  - (ii) be postponed to a different day, time, and place by the Mayor, provided the Corporate Officer is given at least two (2) days written notice.
- (e) Council meetings shall be held in the Village of Harrison Hot Springs Municipal Hall unless, by resolution, some other locale is approved by Council.
- (f) Regular meetings of Council shall be held at 7:00 pm.
- (g) Regular meetings of Council must adjourn by 10:00 p.m. on the day scheduled for the meeting, unless Council resolves to proceed beyond that time;
- (h) At least 24 hours before a regular meeting of Council, the Corporate Officer or designate must give public notice of the time, place and date of the meeting by way of posting a notice at the public notice posting place; and
  - (i) leaving a copy of the agenda for each Council member in the Council member's mailbox at the Village Office;
  - (ii) faxing or emailing a copy of the agenda to the local community newspaper for their information.
- (i) By resolution of Council, if a member of Council cannot attend a Regular or Special Meeting of Council, the member may partake in all matters put before Council and be deemed to be in attendance at the meeting through the use of a telephone or any other such electronic device as approved by Council wherein they can freely partake in verbal discussion on any issue or item.

#### 4. AGENDA:

- (a) Prior to each regular meeting, the Corporate Officer or designate shall prepare an agenda of all business to be brought before the Council at such meeting.
- (b) At least 72 hours before a regular meeting of Council, the Corporate Officer or designate must deliver a copy of the agenda to each member of Council at the place to which the Council member has directed notices and/or agendas to be sent.
- (c) The Mayor or presiding member may add correspondence, reports or other items to the agenda of a regular meeting of Council in that meeting providing Council concurs to the late items by resolution.
- (d) All documents intended to be considered by Council at a meeting must be delivered to the Corporate Officer or designate not later than 12:00 noon on the Wednesday preceding the day of the meeting of the Council.

- (e) The Council shall proceed with business in the order set out in the agenda, unless the majority of the Council present otherwise directs.
- (f) Except as Council otherwise resolves and, in any event, only to the extent that business exists at a particular meeting under each of the following subject headings, the usual order of business at a Regular Meeting of Council shall be:
  - 1. Call to Order
  - 2. Introduction of Late Items
  - 3. Approval of Agenda
  - 4. Adoption of Minutes
  - 5. Business Arising from Minutes
  - 6. Delegations
  - 7. Correspondence
  - 8. Business arising from Correspondence
  - 9. Reports of Committees, COW and Commissions
  - 10. Reports from Mayor
  - 11. Reports from Councillors
  - 12. Reports from staff
  - 13. Bylaws
  - 14. Question Period (pertaining to agenda only)
  - 15. Adjournment
- (g) When any order, motion, or question is lost, by reason of the Council or any Committee thereof breaking up for want of a quorum, the order, resolution, or question so lost shall be the first item of business to be proceeded with and disposed of at the next meeting of the Council or Committee under that particular heading.

#### 5. OPENING PROCEDURES:

- (a) The Mayor shall take the chair and call the members to order as soon after the hour of meeting when a quorum is present.
- (b) The Deputy Mayor shall take the chair and call the members to order in case the Mayor does not attend within 15 minutes after the time appointed for a meeting: or if the Deputy Mayor is absent, the Corporate Officer or designate shall call the members to order and, if a quorum is present, the members shall appoint an Acting Mayor who shall preside during the meeting or until the arrival of the Mayor.
- (c) The Corporate Officer or designate shall record in the minutes, should there be no quorum present within 15 minutes after the time appointed for the meeting, the name of the members present at the expiration of 15 minutes and the meeting shall stand adjourned until the next meeting.

# 6. RULES OF CONDUCT AND DEBATE:

- (a) Every member shall address the chair before speaking to any question or motion.
- (b) Council members shall address the chair as "Mayor", "Your Worship", "Deputy Mayor" or "Acting Mayor" as the case may be and shall refer to each other by surname as "Councillor\_\_\_\_\_".
- (c) No member shall:
  - (i) speak disrespectfully of the reigning sovereign, a member of the Royal Family, the Governor General, or a Lieutenant Governor;
  - (ii) use offensive words in Council or against any member thereof;
  - (iii) speak beside the question in debate or reflect upon a vote of the Council, except for the purposes of moving that the vote be rescinded;
  - (iv) leave his seat or make any noise or disturbance while a vote is being taken and until the result is declared;
  - (v) interrupt a member who is speaking, except to raise a point of order;
  - (vi) disobey the rules of the Council or disobey the decision of the Mayor or presiding member on points of order or practice, or upon the interpretation of the Rules of Council by the Mayor or presiding member, except any member shall have the right of appeal against the Chair as provided for in the *Charter*.
- (d) If any member takes an action prohibited, the member shall be ordered by a majority vote of the Council or on the order of the Mayor or presiding member to leave his/her seat for that meeting, and in the case of his/her refusing to do so, may, on order of the Mayor or presiding member, be removed from the meeting by a Peace Officer.

- (e) However, if a member offending subsection 6(d) apologizes to the Council, the Council may, by majority vote, permit him to resume his seat.
- (f) No member may speak more than once to the same question without leave of the Council, except to explain a material part of his/her speech which may have been misconceived, and in doing so the member may not introduce new information.
- (g) A member who has made a substantive motion to the Council shall be allowed to reply, but not a member who has moved an amendment.
- (h) The Mayor or presiding member, or any member through the Mayor or presiding member, may call a point of order to a member who is speaking. When such action is taken, the Mayor or presiding member shall immediately suspend debate and the member in question shall refrain from speaking until the Mayor or presiding member determines the point of order.
- (i) After a question is finally put by the Mayor or presiding member, no member shall speak to the question nor shall any other motion be made until after the result of the vote has been declared.
- (j) The decision of the Mayor or presiding member, as to whether the question has been finally put, shall be conclusive, and when the Mayor or presiding member is putting a question, no member shall walk out of the Chamber.
- (k) A member of Council may, by right, require the motion under discussion be read for informational purposes at any period of the debate, but not so as to interrupt any member speaking.
- (l) No member shall speak to any motion or in reply for longer than five minutes, without leave of the Council except the mover of a motion shall be allowed to reply to the motion for up to three minutes and close the debate.
- (m) If the Mayor or presiding member desires to leave the chair for purposes of taking part in a debate or otherwise, he shall call upon the Deputy Mayor or, in the absence of the Deputy Mayor, another member of Council to take the chair until the Mayor or presiding member resumes the chair.
- (n) A Council member or former Council member must, unless specifically authorized otherwise by Council:
  - (i) keep in confidence any record held in confidence by the Village, until the record is released to the public as lawfully authorized or required; and

(ii) keep in confidence information considered in any part of an In Camera Council. COW or committee meeting, until the Council, COW or committee discusses the information at a meeting that is open to the public or releases the information to the public.

#### 7. VOTING:

- (a) All voting shall be by a show of hands, unless in the case of a Council meeting where a Council member or members are partaking by use of a telecommunications device, as approved by Council resolution, the voting on a motion shall be conducted by the Mayor or presiding member verbally asking each member, in turn, whether they are in favour of the motion and each Council member must respond verbally in the positive or negative.
- (b) Each member present, including the Mayor or presiding member, shall have one vote.
- (c) A motion on a bylaw or resolution, or any other question before Council, is decided by a majority of the Council members present at the meeting, including the Mayor.
- (d) A member may request that his/her vote be recorded on a question.
- (e) Upon the request of any member, when the question under consideration contains distinct propositions, the vote upon each proposition shall be taken separately.
- (f) Council shall not reconsider any motion more than once at the same meeting, except by unanimous consent of Council.
- (g) After a vote has been taken on a motion, except one of indefinite postponement of a subject, any member who voted on the prevailing side may, at the next regular Council meeting, move for reconsideration or a rescission thereof. Council shall not discuss the main motion until such time as the motion for reconsideration is passed in the affirmative.
- (h) Each Council member present at the time of a vote must vote on the matter.
- (i) If a Council member abstains from voting or does not indicate how they vote, the member is deemed to have voted in the affirmative.
- (j) If the vote of the members present at a Council meeting at the time of the vote is equal for and against a motion, the motion is defeated.

#### 8. MOTIONS:

- (a) Every motion other than a procedural motion shall be recorded by the Corporate Officer or designate.
- (b) When a motion has been made and seconded, the Mayor or presiding member shall propose a question framed thereon to open debate.

- (c) When the debate is closed, the Mayor or presiding member shall immediately put the question to a vote.
- (d) After a motion has been stated or read, it is deemed to be in the possession of Council, but may be withdrawn by the mover and seconder of the motion by the majority of Council members present.
- (e) Whenever the Mayor or presiding member is of the opinion that a motion is contrary to the rules and privileges of Council, he shall apprise the members thereof without proposing the question, and shall cite without argument or comment, the rule or authority applicable to the case.
- (f) When a question is under consideration, no motion shall be received, except for the following;
  - (i) to refer to a Committee;
  - (ii) to amend:
  - (iii) to postpone (defer) to a certain time;
  - (iv) to lay on the table;
  - (v) to postpone indefinitely;
  - (vi) to move the previous motion; and
  - (vii) to adjourn.
- (g) The motions listed in Section 8(f) shall have precedence in the order in which they are named, and the last four shall be neither amendable nor debatable.
- (h) A motion for reference in Section 8 (f)(i) shall, until it is decided, preclude all the amendments of the main question.
- (i) A motion to adjourn the debate is always in order and need not be in writing, and shall be decided without debate. No second motion to the same effect shall be made until some intermediate proceedings have occurred.

#### 9. AMENDMENTS TO MOTIONS:

- (a) A member may move that a motion be amended in one of the following ways:
  - (i) by leaving out certain words;
  - (ii) by leaving out certain words and inserting or adding others;
  - (iii) by inserting or adding certain words; or
  - (iv) by substitution.
- (b) The Mayor or presiding member shall not permit an amendment which negates the purpose of the main motion.

- (c) When a member moves to amend a motion, the Mayor or presiding member shall state the original motion followed by the amendment and then shall put the question of the amendment to the Council.
- (d) If the motion is defeated, the Mayor or presiding member shall again propose the main question and debate may continue.
- (e) Members, other than the member who moved the defeated amendment, may submit amendments.
- (f) If the amendment is passed, then the debate continues on the amended motion. It shall be competent for a member to move other amendments subject to the limitations set forth in the following sections.
- (g) The Mayor or presiding member shall allow only one amendment to an amendment.
- (h) Once Council defeats an amendment, it cannot be moved a second time.
- (i) The Mayor or presiding member shall put amendments to Council in the reverse order to that in which they are moved. When there is a main motion, a primary amendment and a secondary amendment thereto, the motion and appendages shall be put to the Council in the following order:
  - (i) The secondary amendment.
  - (ii) The primary amendment to the main motion.
  - (iii) The main motion.

# 10. **BYLAWS**:

- (a) The Corporate Officer or designate shall have every proposed bylaw prepared before it is considered by Council and every member shall be given a copy at least 24 hours prior to the meeting of Council, or all Council members unanimously agree to waive this requirement.
- (b) Subject to section 135(3) of the *Community Charter*, three readings may be given on the same day, however, section 890(9) of the *Local Government Act* provides that Council may adopt an official community plan or zoning bylaw at the same meeting at which the plan or bylaw passed third reading.
- (c) The Corporate Officer or designate shall endorse upon every Bylaw, the date of the readings, the effective date and the date of adoption.
- (d) Only the title and the intended object of the Bylaw shall be read by the Mayor, presiding member, Corporate Officer or designate at first reading of the Bylaw.

- (e) The Mayor or presiding member shall not allow any amendments or debate at first reading of a Bylaw.
- (f) If a motion to introduce a Bylaw fails or is not made and seconded, the Bylaw shall be considered defeated and shall be removed from the agenda and shall not be brought forward as unfinished business on a subsequent agenda.
- (g) The second and third reading of a Bylaw may be deferred for a total period up to three months upon a motion of Council,
- (h) Where the *Charter* or *Local Government Act* requires that a Public Hearing be held, it shall be held after first reading and before third reading of the Bylaw.
- (i) A Bylaw is not valid unless it has been given three readings and has then been adopted by the Council, pursuant to the *Community Charter*.
- (j) Nothing in this section shall require the Council to introduce a Bylaw or give it any reading or readings.
- (k) Second reading of the Bylaw shall consist of debate upon the general principles of the Bylaw.
- (l) Every Bylaw other than an Official Community Plan or Zoning Bylaw, shall be adopted not less than one clear day after it has received third reading, upon the motion "That the Bylaw cited as "\_\_\_\_" be adopted" provided, however, that if the Bylaw must be approved pursuant to the *Community Charter* or any other *Act*.
- (m) Upon reconsideration, the bylaw may be approved or rejected.
- (n) A Council member may request that the whole or any part of the Bylaw shall again be read before the motion for reconsideration and adoption is put.
- (o) Every adopted and signed bylaw shall be kept indefinitely by the Corporate Officer or designate Bylaw among the corporate records of the municipality.

#### 11. PETITIONS AND DELEGATIONS:

- (a) No person or group of persons wishing to appear before Council may do so unless the Corporate Officer or designate has first been provided a written application prior to 4:30 p.m. on the Wednesday before the meeting to be included on the agenda.
- (b) A delegation shall appoint a speaker or, upon a vote of the majority of Council members present at a meeting, more than one speaker.

- (c) The Mayor or presiding member shall allow up to 10 minutes for the presentation with a ten-minute question and answer period following.
- (d) The Council may dispose of the petition or submission at the meeting, refer the subject matter to a Committee, or take such other action as it deems expedient.
- (e) A petition presented to Council shall legibly include the subject matter, date of the petition, the name of each petitioner, post office box, and civic address.
  - (ii) In the case of a corporation, it is required that the signature on a petition include written authority signed by a Director of the corporation under the corporate seal.
- (f) Council reserves its authority in whole or in part to not deliberate on any matters presented at a delegation until the subsequent meeting.

# 12. SPECIAL MEETINGS OF COUNCIL:

- (a) Except where notice of a special meeting is waived by unanimous vote of all Council members under Section 127 (4) of the *Community Charter*, at least twenty-four hours before a special meeting of Council, the Corporate Officer or designate must:
  - give advance notice of the time, place and date of the meeting by way of a notice posted at the public notice posting places in the Village of Harrison Hot Springs; and
  - (ii) give notice of the special meeting in accordance with Section 127 (2) of the *Community Charter*.

#### 13. ATTENDANCE OF PUBLIC AT MEETINGS:

- (a) Subject to Sections 89 and 90 of the *Community Charter*, all Council meetings must be open to the public.
- (b) Before a meeting or part of a meeting is to be closed (In Camera) to the public, Council must state by resolution, the fact that the meeting is to be closed (In Camera) and the basis under Section 90 of the *Community Charter* on which the meeting is to be closed.
- (c) This section applies to meetings of bodies referred to in Section 93 of the *Community Charter* including, without limitation:
  - (i) Standing or select committees;
  - (ii) Commissions;

(ii) Committee of the Whole.

# 14. **COMMITTEE OF THE WHOLE**:

- (a) A quorum of the Council is quorum for the Committee of the Whole.
- (b) A meeting of the Committee of the Whole may be called at any time by the Mayor.
- (c) At least twenty-four hours before a meeting of the Committee of the Whole, the Corporate Officer or designate must give public notice of the time, place and date of the meeting by way of posting an agenda at the public notice posting places:
- (d) During a Regular Council meeting, Council may, by resolution, resolve itself into the Committee of the Whole to consider specific matters.
- (e) The Mayor shall preside at the Committee of the Whole, unless the Council appoints another member of Council to preside.
- (f) The rules of the Council shall be observed in the Committee of the Whole so far as may be applicable, except that;
  - (i) the number of speeches by a member to any question shall not be limited;
  - (iii) no member shall speak for a longer total time of five minutes to a question; and
  - (iii) a seconder to a motion is not required.
- (g) A record will be recorded of how members voted.
- (h) A motion in the Committee of the Whole to rise without reporting, or that the Chair of the Committee leave the chair, is always in order and shall take precedence over any other motion.
- (i) Debate on a motion referred to in Section 14(f)(i) shall be allowed, but no member shall speak more than once to the motion and, on further vote, shall be considered disposed of in the negative, and the Chair of the Committee of the Whole shall resume the Chair and proceed with the next order of business.
- (j) When all matters referred to the Committee of the Whole have been considered, a motion to rise and report shall be adopted. The Committee, when it has partly considered a matter, may report progress and ask leave to sit again. In resumption of regular Council business, the Chair of the Committee of the Whole shall report to the Council and the Council may:
  - (i) adopt the report;

- (ii) reject the report;
- (iii) adopt the report with amendments;
- (iv) refer the subject matter for further consideration, either in part or in whole;
- (v) postpone action on the report; or
- (vi) approve the request of the Committee to sit again, the Committee having reported progress after partial consideration of the subject.
- (k) A resolution at a Regular meeting of Council to adopt minutes of a Committee of the Whole meeting shall constitute ratification of all motions therein. Issues are finalized and authorized once the Council has passed the resolution to adopt.

# 15. STANDING AND SELECT COMMITTEES AND COMMISSIONS

- (a) The Mayor must establish standing committees and appoint persons to those committees;
  - (i) At least half of the members of a standing committee must be council members;
  - (ii) Subject to 15(a)(i), persons who are not council members may be appointed to a standing committee.
- (b) Council may establish and appoint a select committee;
  - (i) At least one member of a select committee must be a council member:
  - (ii) Subject to 15(b)(i), persons who are not council members may be appointed to a select committee.
- (c) The Mayor shall designate one member of each committee to act as Chair and the Chair will be entitled to one vote.
- (d) Members of Council, other than members appointed to a Standing Committee, may attend the meetings of a Standing Committee and shall not be allowed to vote, but may, with the consent of the Committee, be allowed to take part in any discussion or debate by permission of a majority vote of the members of the Committee.
- (e) Council may establish and appoint a commission;
- (f) A council member is not eligible to be a member of an advisory planning commission, but may attend at a meeting of the commission in a resource capacity.

- (g) A council member is eligible to be a member of any other commission;
- (h) At least twenty-four hours before a meeting of Standing and Select Committees or Commissions, the Corporate Officer or designate must give public notice of the time, place and date of the Standing, Select Committee or Commission meeting by way of posting a notice at the public notice posting places;
- (i) The Mayor shall be an ex-officio member of all Committees and be entitled to vote at all meetings thereof.
- (h) In the transaction of business, all Standing and Select Committees and Commissions shall adhere, as far as possible, to the rules governing proceedings at the meetings of Council.
- (i) A Select Committee shall, upon completion of its assignment and upon submission of its final report to the Council, be automatically dissolved.
- (j) A majority of voting members appointed to a Standing and Select Committee or Commission shall constitute a quorum.
- (k) A resolution at a Regular meeting of Council to adopt minutes of Standing and Select Committees and Commissions shall constitute ratification of all motions therein. Issues are finalized and authorized once Council has passed the resolution to adopt.
- (1) Standing Committees and Commissions must consider, inquire into, report and make recommendations to Council as follows:
  - (i) Matters related to the general subject indicated by the name of the committee or commission:
  - (ii) Matters that are assigned by Council;
  - (iii) Matters that are assigned by the Mayor
- (m) Select Committees must consider, inquire into, report and make recommendations to Council about the matters referred to the committee by the Council:

#### 16. **REPORTS**:

- (a) Reports of activities, as required by Council, shall be submitted through the Chief Administrative Officer for inclusion on the next Regular Council agenda for the following areas:
  - (i) Planning, Development and Building

- (ii) Fire Department
- (iii) Public Works
- (iv) Finance
- (iv) Bylaw Enforcement

# 17. <u>UNPROVIDED CASES</u>:

Except as provided in this Bylaw or in the *Community Charter*, the Council, its Standing and Select Committees, Commissions and Committee of the Whole, shall follow the rules contained in the Roberts Rules of Order.

# 18. <u>SUSPENSION OF RULES</u>:

- (a) Any one or more rules and orders contained in this Bylaw may be temporarily suspended by a majority vote of the whole of Council, except those contained in Section 6 (d), Section 10 (a), (b), and (c), and Section 15 (c)
- (b) No action of Council is rendered invalid solely by reason of any breach, inadvertent or otherwise, of any provisions of this Bylaw.

# 19. SEVERANCE CLAUSE:

If any section, subsection, sentence, clause or phrase of this bylaw is, for any reason, held to be invalid by the decision of any Court of competent jurisdiction, the invalid portion shall be severed and the decision that it is invalid shall not affect the validity of the remainder of this Bylaw.

#### 20. **CONFLICT OF INTEREST**:

- (a) Should a member of Council or its committees deem to have a direct or indirect pecuniary interest in any matter before a meeting, he shall verbally declare such a conflict, state the general nature that this is to be the case, and remove himself from the meeting.
- (b) A member of Council or its committees declaring a conflict of interest must not attempt in any way, whether before, during, or after the meeting, to influence the voting on any question in respect of the matter. After such declaration, the Corporate Officer or designate must have recorded in the minutes, the declaration of the conflict, the reasons given for it and the times of the member's departure from and return to the meeting.
- (c) The Mayor/Chair or presiding member of the Council or its committee meetings must ensure that the member is not present at the meeting at the time of any vote in respect of the matter.

(d) A member of Council may be disqualified from continuing to hold office pursuant to the *Community Charter* if he is in contravention of this section unless the contravention was done inadvertently or because of an error in judgment made in good faith.

#### 21. GENDER NEUTRAL

- (a) This bylaw is gender neutral and accordingly, any reference or phrase to one gender includes the other.
- (b) Words in the singular include the plural and words in the plural include the singular.

#### 22. REPEAL:

DEAD A CIDOT TIME ALL

Bylaw 801 cited as "COUNCIL PROCEDURE BYLAW No. 801. 2004" and Bylaw 848 cited as "VILLAGE OF HARRISON HOT SPRINGS COUNCIL PROCEDURE AMENDMENT BYLAW No. 848, are hereby repealed in their entirety.

23. THIS BYLAW may not be amended or repealed and substituted unless Council first gives notice in accordance with section 94 of the *Community Charter*.

In Compliance with section 124(3) of the *Community Charter*, a notice was placed in the June 4, 2009 and June 11, 2009 editions of the Agassiz-Harrison Observer newspaper.

Mayor		Corporate Officer		
ADOPTED this day of	f 2009.			
READ A THIRD TIME this	day of	2009.		
READ A SECOND TIME this	day of	2009.		
READ A FIRST TIME this	day of	2009.		